ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE STATE AFFAI RS STANDI NG COW TTEE
February 19, 2004
8:02 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Bruce Weyhrauch, Chair
Representative JimHolm Vice Chair
Representati ve John Coghil |
Representative Bob Lynn

Represent ati ve Paul Seaton
Representative Ethan Berkow tz
Representati ve Max Gruenberg

VEVMBERS ABSENT
Al l nmenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

SENATE BILL NO 270
"An Act establishing Novenber as Aval anche Awar eness Mnth."

- MOVED SB 270 OQUT OF COW TTEE

HOUSE BI LL NO. 319

"An Act relating to the disposal of state land by lottery; and
relating to the disposal, including sale or |ease, of renote
recreational cabin sites.”

- MOVED CSHB 319( STA) QUT OF COW TTEE
OVERSI GHT HEARI NG  WASTEWATER | MPACT OF CRUI SE | NDUSTRY REPORT

- HEARD [See 9:06 a.m mnutes for this date]
HOUSE BI LL NO. 329
"An Act relating to retirenment incentive prograns for the public
enpl oyees' retirenment system the judicial retirenent system
and the teachers' retirement system relating to separation
incentives for certain state enployees; and providing for an
effective date."

- MOVED CSHB 329( STA) QUT OF COW TTEE

HOUSE JO NT RESOLUTI ON NO. 3

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -1- February 19, 2004



Proposi ng anendnents to the Constitution of the State of Al aska
relating to the Al aska permanent fund.

- SCHEDULED BUT NOT HEARD

HOUSE BI LL NO. 351

"An Act relating to the devices, including carbon nonoxide
detection devices, required in dwellings; and providing for an
effective date."

- SCHEDULED BUT NOT HEARD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: SB 270

SHORT TI TLE: AVALANCHE AWARENESS MONTH
SPONSOR(S): SENATOR(S) GREEN

01/ 16/ 04 (S) READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 16/ 04 (S) STA

02/ 03/ 04 (S) STA AT 3:30 PM BELTZ 211

02/ 03/ 04 (S) Moved SB 270 Qut of Conmittee

02/ 03/ 04 (S) M NUTE( STA)

02/ 04/ 04 (S) STA RPT 2DP 1NR

02/ 04/ 04 (S) DP. STEVENS G GUESS; NR. STEDMAN
02/ 06/ 04 (S) TRANSM TTED TO (H)

02/ 06/ 04 (S) VERSI ON: SB 270

02/ 09/ 04 (H) READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
02/ 09/ 04 (H) STA

02/ 17/ 04 (H) STA AT 8:00 AM CAP| TOL 102

02/ 17/ 04 (H) Heard & Hel d

02/ 17/ 04 (H) M NUTE( STA)

02/ 19/ 04 (H) STA AT 8:00 AM CAP| TOL 102

BILL: HB 319

SHORT TI TLE: REMOTE REC. CABI N SI TE SALES/ LOTTERY SALE

SPONSOR( S): REPRESENTATI VE(S) FATE

05/ 14/ 03 (H READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
05/ 14/ 03 (H STA, RES, FIN

01/ 13/ 04 (H STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 102

01/ 13/ 04 (H Heard & Hel d

01/ 13/ 04 (H M NUTE( STA)

02/ 03/ 04 (H STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 102

02/ 03/ 04 (H Heard & Hel d

02/ 03/ 04 (H M NUTE( STA)

02/ 10/ 04 (H STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 102

HOUSE STA COW TTEE

- 2- February 19, 2004



02/ 10/ 04 (H Heard & Hel d

02/ 10/ 04 (H) M NUTE( STA)

02/ 19/ 04 (H) STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 102
BILL: HB 329

SHORT TITLE: RETI REMENT | NCENTI VE PROGRAM
SPONSOR(S): REPRESENTATI VE(S) MCGUI RE

05/ 21/ 03 (H READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS
05/ 21/ 03 (H STA, L&C, FIN

01/ 13/ 04 (H STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 102
01/ 13/ 04 (H <Bi || Hearing Postponed>
01/ 29/ 04 (H STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 102
01/ 29/ 04 (H Heard & Held

01/ 29/ 04 (H) M NUTE( STA)

02/ 05/ 04 (H STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 102
02/ 05/ 04 (H) <Bi || Hearing Postponed>
02/ 17/ 04 (H STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 102
02/ 17/ 04 (H Heard & Held

02/ 17/ 04 (H) M NUTE( STA)

02/ 19/ 04 (H STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TCL 102

W TNESS REG STER

REPRESENTATI VE HUGH FATE

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as sponsor of HB 319.

NANCY WELCH, Speci al Assi stant

Anchorage O fice

O fice of the Conm ssioner

Department OF Natural Resources (DNR)

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Answered questions on behalf of the
departnment during the hearing on HB 319.

JI'M POUND, Staff

to Representative Hugh Fate

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: During discussion of HB 319, on behalf of
t he sponsor, answered a question fromthe conmttee.

REPRESENTATI VE LESI L McGU RE

Al aska State Legislature
Juneau, Al aska

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 3- February 19, 2004



POSI TI ON STATEMENT: As sponsor, responded to proposed anmendnents
during the hearing on HB 329.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 04-18, SIDE A
Number 0001

CHAI R BRUCE WEYHRAUCH called the House State Affairs Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 8:02 a.m Represent ati ves
Weyhrauch, Holm Seaton, and G uenberg were present at the cal
to order. Representatives Coghill, Lynn, and Berkowitz arrived
as the meeting was in progress.

SB 270- AVALANCHE AWARENESS MONTH

Number 0050

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH announced that the first order of business was
SENATE BILL NO 270, "An Act establishing Novenber as Aval anche
Awar eness Mont h. "

Nunber 0212

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON noved to report SB 270 out of commttee
with individual recomendations and the acconpanying fiscal
not es. There being no objection, SB 270 was noved out of the
House State Affairs Standing Commttee.

HB 319- REMOTE REC. CABI N SI TE SALES/ LOTTERY SALE

Nunmber 0466

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH announced that the next order of business was
HOUSE BILL NO 319, "An Act relating to the disposal of state
|l and by lottery; and relating to the disposal, including sale or
| ease, of renpte recreational cabin sites.”

REPRESENTATI VE HUGH FATE, Al aska State Legislature, sponsor of
HB 319, explained that a commttee substitute had been drafted
to incorporate sonme of the anmendnents the commttee discussed at
a previous hearing. Additionally, there was an anendnent
available to offer [Anendnent 1, in commttee packets].

Nunmber 0698

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -4- February 19, 2004



CHAI R VEYHRAUCH noved to adopt the commttee substitute (CS) for
HB 319, Version 23-LS0477\1, Bullock, 2/14/04, as a work draft.

Number 0710
REPRESENTATI VE SEATON obj ected for di scussi on purposes.
Number 0736

REPRESENTATI VE FATE turned to Amendnent 1 [to Version I], which
read as follows [original punctuation provided]:

Page 3, lines 9-12
Delete all nmaterial and insert:

"(1) prepare a schedule of land offerings under this
section and identify the parcels for disposal each
year; the land offerings may not include mneral |and
selected by the state or lands identified by the
departnment as having a high mneral potential; the
departnment's identification of |and having a high
m neral potential shall be based on standards adopted

by the departnment in regulations and shall include
consi deration of a geophysi cal surveyor [ sic]
geol ogi cal evaluation, if any, that was conducted

wi thin 15 cal endar years before the year for which the
schedul e i s prepared; and"

REPRESENTATI VE FATE indicated that sone of the |anguage in the
amendnent was adopted from [the recommendations nade by] the
Alaska Mning Association, as well as by the Departnent of
Nat ural Resources.

Nunber 0847

REPRESENTATI VE HOLM noved to adopt Anmendnent 1 [text provided
previ ously].

The commttee took a brief at-ease.
Nunber 0906
REPRESENTATI VE SEATON obj ected [for discussion purposes].

Number 0915

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 5- February 19, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE FATE turned the committee's attention to the
fifth line of Amendnent 1, where the words "survey" and "or" run
t oget her. He recomended a technical change to add a space in
bet ween. In response to a question by Chair Wyhrauch, he
confirmed that another technical change was necessary to change
"Page 3, lines 9-12" to read "Page 3, |ines 10-14".

Number 1079

REPRESENTATI VE HOLM said he is curious as to "the overlay of
lands clainms and all of the things that are going on with the
state that we still haven't solved." He asked, "Where is this
going to fit inatime |ine?"

REPRESENTATI VE FATE responded that the cut-off date is 2009. He
explained that if land is encunbered, it won't be offered for
| ocati on. He indicated that in 2009, a new evaluation could be
done of those | ands that have becone avail abl e.

Nunmber 1160
REPRESENTATI VE SEATON inquired if there is a fiscal note.

REPRESENTATI VE FATE indicated that the fiscal note is an ongoing
[ process], and he said there are tw other conmttees of

referral for the bill. He remnded the committee that the
peopl e who nmake the application for the available land will also
bear the expense of the appraisal and survey of the |and. He
said it's expected that the state will actually nake noney from
this plan.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked if, for exanple, the costs required
for DNR to evaluate which lands will be nmade available [have
been consi dered].

REPRESENTATI VE FATE responded t hat sone adm ni strative
expensive, such as map-neking, will be borne by the state. He
indicated that the fiscal note being fornulated is a good one.

Nunber 1296

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG turned to Representative Fate's witten
response to the Alaska Conservation Voters [dated February 3,
2004 and included in the conmttee packet]. He said there are
several financial assunptions included in that response. He
stated that he would like to see, if possible, a revenue-neutra
bill.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 6- February 19, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE FATE reiterated that "this" actually will not be
revenue neutral, but will be a positive source of revenue to the
state. He said there is hard data that can substantiate that.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG cl arified that his concern had been in
hearing Representative Fate speak of expenses borne by the state
[ such as the map naking].

REPRESENTATI VE FATE expl ai ned that those costs were included in
"the expense side of both of our fiscal notes.”

Number 1425
REPRESENTATI VE SEATON wi t hdrew hi s objection to Anendnent 1.
Nunmber 1434

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH asked if there was any further objection to
Amendnent 1 [as technically anended]. There being none,
Amendnent 1, as anended, was adopt ed.

Nunber 1445

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ said it is his experience that there
usually is sonme kind of "DNR-type easenent along streanbeds or
| akes for access.” He asked if that would be accommobdated in
t he proposed | egislation.

REPRESENTATI VE FATE replied that "it does,"” because there are
other laws that deal with the nean high water and how far back a
person's property can start "on that." There are stipulations
that already are in law that require that setback to be so far
froma high water mark, he said.

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ turned to page 3, [lines 30-31], which
read as follows:

(1) the lake, river, or other navigable
water frontage nust be at |east 300 feet and nmay not
exceed 400 feet;

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ noted that [the |anguage] doesn't say,

"respecting other provisions of law." He added that it seens to
trunp those ot her provisions.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -7- February 19, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE FATE responded that that's true. However, he
offered the follow ng exanple: If a person is on the Yukon
Ri ver, he/she can only have fee-sinple property at a certain
point which is reflected by the survey. He expl ained that the
specific point is the high water mark for any particular river.

Nunmber 1590

NANCY WELCH, Special Assistant, Anchorage Ofice, Ofice of the
Comm ssi oner, Departnment OF Natural Resources (DNR), in response
to remarks from Representatives Berkowitz and Seaton, stated
that she does not believe HB 319 would change the statute, AS
35. 05. 127. She explained, "This is typical of any other |and

di sposal that we've sold; ... even if you get water frontage
the state still reserves to it a public easenent to and al ong
public and navigable water bodies." Therefore, the | andowner

owns "to the ordinary high water mark," but does not get full
use and benefit of that 50 or 100 feet, because of the easenent
that is reserved by the state.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked if that easenment is automatically
applied, so that private citizens "have the use of that, wthout
it being further designated,” or if it is an easenent for
putting in a designated road or trail, for exanple.

M5. WELCH responded that it is not automatic; the state actually

has to "find to what the width and use of that easenent is." 1In
certain cases, she said, it may not be desirable to have
sonebody build sonething because of instabilities of soils, for
exanpl e. Each individual parcel will still require a finding,
she sai d.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON nentioned recreational plots that would be
out along a river or | ake. He asked if it is correct that if
the state doesn't "cone in with a specific finding on that
parcel,” the public could be prevented fromtransiting along the
bank of that stream or around the margin of that | ake.

MS. WELCH said that is correct.
Nunmber 1768
REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG turned again to a sentence at the

bottom of page 3 of [Representative Fate's] response to the
Al aska Conservation Voters. The sentence read as foll ows:

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 8- February 19, 2004



Rul es and regulations restricting the size of borough
|l and sites within a borough are applicable on borough
owned | and.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG stated his interpretation of that
sentence is that the laws regarding the regulation within a
borough are governed by the l|ocal governnment |aw, and would
trunmp "this bill."” He asked if that is correct.

Nunber 1831

JIM POUND, Staff to Representative Hugh Fate, Alaska State
Legislature, testifying on behalf Representative Fate, sponsor
of HB 319, responded as follows for the record:

Borough, if it is nore restrictive than state,
traditionally does trunp state | aw.

Number 1849

M5. WELCH, in response to a question by Representative Holm
confirmed that the fiscal note is $433, 000.

REPRESENTATI VE HOLM pointed to the analysis which states that
the fiscal note assumes that there would be 150 applications

He said it seems inconceivable that there would be $3,000-worth
of state costs per application. He asked Ms. Welch to define
"why that would be."

Number 1963
M5. WELCH explained that the way the bill is currently drafted,
an individual decision would be required on each parcel. That

decision would include a best interest finding and public
notice. She continued as foll ows:

And so, it's very simlar to our existing preference-
right statute, [for] which we receive an application

and then we have to adjudicate each land offering - as
opposed to the current renote parcels program where we
have gained a lot of efficiencies by batching certain
areas and we do one best interest finding for the ful

area; we do one |and appraisal; we do one survey. And
we contract for those, but the applicant is stil

required to pay for the appraisal and the survey. So,
that's where a |lot of the cost cones in to play, is

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 9- February 19, 2004



the amount of staff time that is required to process
each individual application.

REPRESENTATI VE HOLM asked if it would nake sense that "that
woul d be a part of the cost to the | andhol der."

MS. VELCH replied that she doesn't think that [HB 319] addresses
that the cost associated with actually offering the parcel is
attached to the | andowner. She noted that the state already has
a law on the books that says [the departnent] can charge a
deposit to individuals for processing. In that case, she said,
there will be some revenues to the state, but she stated she
thinks the interest in the programwould "drop drastically.”

Nunber 2000

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ said he serves on the DNR subcommittee
[of the House Finance Conmttee]. He noted that DNR "took a
substantial hit last night,” which he opined seens to conprom se
DNR s ability to conduct its core businesses. He asked Ms.
Welch if she would consider that the bill, as proposed, as

sonething at the core of "what you do,"” or if she would "put it
farther down the hierarchy of DNR responsibilities.”

M5. WELCH stated her belief that one of the departnent's core
responsibilities is to do land sales. She said she thinks [the

departnment] will have to look for efficiencies, as it has done
in the past, to try to reduce its overhead. She concl uded, "And
so, with the huge budget crunch to us and the cost ... per
parcel to process, | just don't see this as being high priority

for the state.”

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ thanked the folks at DNR for their
continued efforts.

Nunmber 2087

REPRESENTATI VE FATE menti oned hi storic dat a from the
departnment's own records. He expressed that that, plus the
departnment's wllingness to go to bat, has been hel pful.

Number 2140
REPRESENTATI VE SEATON referred to Amendnent 1, which the
commttee had previously adopted. He nentioned page 2 of the

fiscal note and asked, "Wich one of those is that incorporated
into - that geol ogi cal and geophysical infornmation?”

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -10- February 19, 2004



MS5. VELCH answered that the fiscal note "does not reflect that

at all,"” because the fiscal note was created for the original
bill wversion. One of the reasons the word "or" [language from
Amendnment 1] was requested was to "lower the standard, if you
will, for what would be required.” She explained that a
geophysical survey is a nuch greater requirenent than a
geol ogi cal eval uati on. She noted that nobst of the land use
plans reflect a high or low mneral potential. She said, "So, |
don't believe there will be a substantive cost to determ ne that
through ... [a geological] evaluation, as opposed to a survey."
Nunber 2237

REPRESENTATI VE WEYHRAUCH asked if the term "nmeander mle" is a
termof art.

Nunber 2249

MR. POUND offered his understanding that "neander mle" is a
termused in regard to water.

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH gave the exanple of a hone that sits along a
river and asked if the measurenment would be from the bank on
which the honme sits. He asked if [the neasurenent would
involve] the mddle of the river, or the far side of the river,
for exanpl e.

REPRESENTATI VE FATE expl ained that the nmeander line is actually
the shoreline contour. He offered an exanple of a peninsula
with a base length of only 200 feet, but with a neander mle
[out al ong the peninsula and back] that could well be a mle.

Nunber 2287

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ, on that point, expressed concern
regarding a mandatory mninmm of a 300-foot waterfront. In an
oxbow situation, he said, 300 feet nay not be feasible. He

asked what kind of accommbdati on would be available if 300 feet
were not consistent with the geography.

REPRESENTATI VE FATE said he thinks in that situation it would be
up to the comm ssioner to determ ne whether or not that |and
woul d be sel ect ed.

Nunmber 2386

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -11- February 19, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said there currently are considerations

for two tinber sales - one for a lamnated veneer plant in
Seward and the other for a chipping operation that would operate
in Point Possession, near Valdez. He asked if renote cabin

sites were sprinkled throughout the area in which the state was
trying to have a tinber sale, how conplicated would that
[ becone] in relation to the tinber sale, and would the person
who reserved the right to the pieces of land be reserving the
tinber rights on the land as well, wuntil [that [|and] was
finalized as private property?

Nunber 2438

M5. WELCH responded that she doesn't believe that [HB 319]
actually changes classifications, and |and use classifications
that have already been determned to be for tinber or forestry
as the primary use would renmain so. She stated her assunption
that those would not be allowed to be sold from the state.
Therefore, she concluded, the |ands being considered for "these
val ue- added type industries" are those that have already been
classified as forestry, or within the state forest.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked Ms. Welch to confirm that her
understanding is that the bill would not allow any of the |ands
within either the forest or the state forestry tinberland to be
selected for recreational cabin sites.

M5. WELCH answered that's correct. She said, "It does not refer
to [AS] 38.04.065, which is the land use planning statute, as
saying that it doesn't apply to that. So, ny assunption is that
it's like any other land program ... it has to be classified in
sone type of settlenent category in order to be sold, or we
woul d have to devise a |land use plan in order to do so."

Number 2500

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked Representative Fate if that is also
hi s understanding. He continued as foll ows:

Basically, if that's the case, then all of the Tanana
Valley and the Mat-Su [Matanuska-Susitna] Valley -

even the west side of the Susitna - would be off-
limts to this program Was that the intent of the
bill?

Number 2525

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -12- February 19, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE FATE replied that the intent of the bill is to
all ow the comm ssioner and the director of the Division of Lands
and Water [in the Department of Natural Resources] to designate

"t hose areas." He added, "And it states in the bill ... those
lands that are already encunbered, and that wuld be an
encunbrance.” He said, "So, we want to nmake | and avail abl e, but

we also want to make sure that we don't inpede the devel opnent
of the state of Al aska.

Nunber 2576

M5. MWELCH, in response to a question from Representative
G uenberg, offered her understanding that "neander mle" is a
term of art that makes sense, but is not defined in statute or
regul ati on.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked if that term should be defined in
the bill, or if the commttee should specifically state on the
record that it would like [DNR] to define it in regulation

M5. WELCH replied that either would be fine. She offered her
understanding that "the neander” would be on the ordinary high
water mark line; therefore, it would be useful to define "that."
In response to a question from Representative G uenberg, she
said the definition could be nade in regulation if it's not
defined [by the legislature] in statute.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG stated that he wants it clear for the
record that it is the intent of the commttee that that term
specifically be defined in a regul ation.

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH, in response to a question from Representative
G uenberg, concurred that a notion was not necessary in regard
to the statement of intent.

Nunmber 2644

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG turned to the Jlast |I|ine of the
previ ously adopted Amendnent 1 [to Version 1], [regarding the
departnent's identification of high mneral potential |and
i ncluding surveys being] "conducted within 15 calendar years
before the year for which the schedule is prepared;"”. He

referred to a letter (included in the commttee packet), which
is dated February 16, 2004, and is from the Al aska Mners
Association, Inc., signed by Steven Borell. He pointed to the
second sentence in the |ast paragraph of page 1 of the letter,
whi ch read as foll ows:

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -13- February 19, 2004



G ven that geophysi cal technology continues to
inmprove, it is inportant that relatively nodern
surveys are utilized wthout the requirenment for a
survey imredi ately before a | and offering.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG suggested that a survey could fall just
outside of the 15-year limt described in the |anguage of the
bill and still be considered "relatively nodern"; therefore, he
suggested that the | anguage should be | oosened a little bit.

Nunber 2778

M5. WELCH responded that 15 years is probably a tine frame with
whi ch the departnent can work. She said she would expect that
nost of the mneral evaluations have been done within the [ast
15 years, in regard to | and use pl ans.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG sai d he understands that that may apply
now, but he asked if that would always be accurate. He stated,
"I'm concerned that you'll find that - particularly wth
budgetary constraints - you're not going to always be having
surveys that are 15 years old, yet they're entirely adequate.™

M5. WELCH said she understands Representative Guenberg's
concern. She continued as foll ows:

| would expect that - before we would change a
classification from sonething that had been previously
classified as low mneral potential to a |and di sposa
category, in order to offer that for sale - ... we
would have to conduct sonme kind of geol ogi c
evaluation. Oherwise, for the lands that are already
classified as "settlenent” we don't normally do that,
because we expect that we've already gone through an
analysis of what's of highest and best use for the

property.
Nunmber 2808

CHAI R WVEYHRAUCH noted that [HB 319] would be heard by the House
Resources Standing Conmittee where this issue could be
considered in nore detail.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG indicated that he was satisfied wth
t hat .

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -14- February 19, 2004



Nunber 2814

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON expressed concern regarding a |[previous]
statenent that there wouldn't be automatic public access al ong
streans and rivers, unless they are delineated "by a certain
wi dt h and devel opnent of those right-of-ways." He asked if that
is incorporated in the fiscal note.

M5. WELCH replied that that is part of DNR s analysis. She
clarified that [DNR] has to do a best-interest finding for the
par cel s. Part of that best-interest finding would be to
determ ne what to reserve along the water bodies.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said he is concerned that there is no
requirenent that "foot traffic by the public is automatically
reserved. " He asked if there is some way that could be
acconpl i shed.

Number 2873

REPRESENTATI VE FATE stated his understanding of the intent of
the bill is that when a person gets entitled to fee-sinple
[land], he/she only gets entitled to that portion that goes to
the high-water nark. He said, "The rest is reserved to the
public domain or where that high water cones from and so that
is public access.” He explained, "Being state ground, they

woul d have to designate that as being off-limts to the public
for sonme reason; it wouldn't be precluded because the new ...
fee-sinple owner of that property in sone way stopped people
from going over that public [|and. They don't own that |and up
to that high-water mark."

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON clarified that his concern is not just in
regard to where there is a long distance between the high-water
and lowwater marks in the streanbeds. He noted that many
streans have deep banks where the public would have to [wal k] on
the area adjacent to the stream while not walking in the stream
or "whatever the bank consideration is." He stated his
understanding that Ms. Wlch had said that "unless there's a
specific finding and a specific designation, and a wdth of a
right-of-way that are reserved in these peaceable transfers, it
woul d not be autonmatically there.” He continued as foll ows:

I"'m concerned that the legislature does not, by
accident, cone in and create situations where the bank
configuration is such that the public would be
precl uded because all of the area above the high-water

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -15- February 19, 2004



mark - which is what can be transited - is going to be
private property with a fence down to the high-water
mar k.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said he doesn't think that's the sponsor's
i ntent.

TAPE 04-18, SIDE B
Nunber 2991

REPRESENTATI VE FATE responded that it is basically the state's
option to nmake that determ nation. The proposed |egislation
sinply deals with what happens to the fee-sinple |and. He
st at ed, "Once it's fee sinple - when it becones ownership -
that does not extend, as we've said, to that option that the
state can certainly exercise, which usually is to open that up

to public access.™ He said that by the very nature of giving
fee sinple to the property owners, it wasn't the intent of the
bill to preclude anyone from public access to those areas that

were not owned by individuals "under fee sinple.”

Nunmber 2912

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON offered an exanple of an area wth a
bl uff. He said a person could be wal king along the upper part
of the bluff and there really isn't a large distance between
hi gh water and | ow water where he/she can transit. He suggested
that unless there is a requirenent in the bill that says the

state shall maintain access for foot traffic along the 300-400
feet of a river bank [where a person owns fee-sinple |and],
there is the possibility of DNR not going through and
designating on each parcel a certain wdth and place of passage.
He said that would nean possible inpact to pedestrian traffic in
t he backcountry.

REPRESENTATI VE FATE said that issue had been considered, but

"that curtails options of DNR in the state of Alaska." He
reiterated that the conm ssioner still has the final authority.
Nunmber 2832

REPRESENTATI VE FATE, in response to guesti ons from
Representative Holm confirmed that a person could not own
contiguous land sites on a river; the bill is designed to offer

renmote recreational sites, not subdivisions. He al so confirned
that a nmeander mle would be a mle as it goes back and forth
along a river's edge, for exanple.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -16- February 19, 2004



Number 2760

REPRESENTATIVE HOLM said he shares Representative Seaton's
concern. He said, "Wen you're up agai nst the bank on the other
side, there's no way to go down along the river bank." He
mentioned taking the best fishing sites and saying that's
sonebody's renpte site. He said, "I want the state to be able
to at |east have access for all the property behind the river,
as well; to access the river." He explained, "I'm concerned
that we don't have the contiguous portion, so that we don't
block, if you wll, the properties behind the river or not
adjacent to a river or adjacent to a |ake, so they can have
access to that resource.”

REPRESENTATI VE FATE said he has not concerned hinself with this
issue as nuch as Representative Holm has, for a sinple reason
"Most of those are accessible by boat or float plane.™

REPRESENTATI VE HOLM said he is concerned about rendering in the
future.

REPRESENTATI VE FATE responded that, in the future, if sonebody
built a cabin right on the cliff, the high-water mark then woul d
be on the cliff. He stated his understanding that
Representative Holm had said that a person wouldn't be able to
access the shoreline because it was so steep.

REPRESENTATI VE HOLM said nost rivers in the Interior of Al aska

have a accreted side and a side that's being cut out. He said a
person can't get to the riverbank because the water's right
t here. That is the bank that is used for traversing. He

clarified his concern is that there is not a situation where
people go down the stream and all of a sudden are unable to
continue unless they go all the way around "sone renote parcel”
to be able to continue down the stream [ bank].

REPRESENTATI VE FATE said it is an historic high-water nmark that
is taken at the time of a survey, and accretion or flooding
coul d change the area. He stated that these are questions that
really can't be answered, because of the very nature of change
of those streans.

REPRESENTATI VE HOLM reiterated his concern. He gave an exanple
of soneone noving along a stream while fishing and comng to a
spot where he/she cannot pass soneone's property. He said, "The
hi gh-water mark doesn't fit in here, because when you're on the

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -17- February 19, 2004



cutting side of the river, there is no high-water mark; the
hi gh-water mark is naybe underneath where the bank is.” He
indicated that if a person cannot get to the bank, he/she cannot
get to the high-water mark. He synopsized, "W don't care if
sonebody owns to the bank; we just want to nmake sure that
sonebody has an opportunity to wal k al ong the bank."

Number 2582

REPRESENTATI VE FATE responded that the only situation in which
he has actually seen a nonexistent high-water mark is where
there is an actually rock formation in the cliff form He
expl ai ned, "When you have alluvial deposits, ... you will have a
hi gh-water mark up on that bank where you have that cut bank
that you' ve described, that keeps cutting into that

REPRESENTATI VE HOLM stated that he respectfully di sagrees.

REPRESENTATI VE FATE clarified that he was talking about the
hi gh-wat er marKk. He nentioned taking "setback"” requirenents
i nto consi deration.

MR. POUND noted that, for the nobst part, there are riparian
standards of 50-100 feet on all navigable waters in the state of
Al aska. That |and cannot be devel oped. He said he believes
there is an access clause to navigable waters in Al aska that
"supercedes its existing statute |anguage,” and therefore
guar ant ees access to navigable waters and requires that the | and
right next to the water cannot be devel oped. He said he
suspects a fence woul d be consi dered devel opnent.

REPRESENTATI VE HOLM said, "That works for ne."
Number 2409

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said he is confused by hearing one person
say that there is guaranteed public access along the stream
banks even if there is fee-sinple [land] right to the bank,
while hearing Ms. Wlch say that there is no public access
unless each specific parcel is laid out wth J[certain
specifications]. He enphasized that he needs clarification from
DNR on the issue.

[HB 319 was brought back before the commttee after the
oversight hearing on this sane date.]

Number 2347

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 18- February 19, 2004



CHAIR WEYHRAUCH called an at-ease at 9:03 a.m in order to
prepare for the oversight hearing regardi ng wastewater inpact of
the cruise industry report.

[ The mnutes for the oversight hearing can be found under the
9:06 a.m mnutes for this date. See tape 04-20.]

TAPE 04-19, SIDE A
Nunmber 0001

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH reconvened the House State Affairs Standing
Committee at 9:32 a.m after an at-ease that followed the
overvi ew.

HB 319- REMOTE REC. CABI N SI TE SALES/ LOTTERY SALE

CHAI R VWEYHRAUCH announced that the conmmttee would return to
HOUSE BILL NO 319, "An Act relating to the disposal of state
|l and by lottery; and relating to the disposal, including sale or
| ease, of renote recreational cabin sites.™

Nunmber 0065

MR. POUND noted that he provided the commttee with a [two-page
handout included in the commttee packet], which shows both AS
38. 05. 127, "Access to navigable or public water", and
AS 38.05.128, "Cbstructions to navigable water". He stated his
belief that this information should answer the mgjority of the
concerns of Representatives Seaton and Hol m

Number 0105

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG offered a hypothetical exanple of a
river wiwth one good fishing site on it that a |ot of people use.
He asked what would prevent one person from basically "l ocking
that up and keepi ng everybody else fromusing it."

MR. POUND indicated that, based upon the previously nentioned
statutes, a person may not deny that access. He returned to his
exanpl e of someone putting up a fence and said that would be
obstructing access to navigable water, which is a m sdeneanor.
Nunmber 0252

REPRESENTATI VE FATE concurred with M. Pound's coments.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -19- February 19, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG sai d t hat answers his question.
Number 0310

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked Ms. Welch to clarify if, under the
terms of the fee-sinple sales and integral wth the sales, AS
38.05.127 would require that public access be nmaintained along
all the water bodies [that are between] 300-400 feet.

Number 0380

M5. WELCH said that's correct. She reiterated that before [DNR]
can do any kind of land disposal, it has to do a finding that
the waters are public or navigable.

Number 0422

REPRESENTATI VE FATE stated for the record his appreciation of
the effort his staff has made on behal f of the bill

Nunber 0470

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH cl osed public testinony.

Nunber 0490

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG noved to report CSHB 319, Version 23-
LS0477\1, Bullock, 2/14/04, as anended, out of comrmittee wth
i ndi vidual recomendations and the acconpanying fiscal notes.
There being no objection, CSHB 319(STA) was reported out of the
House State Affairs Standing Conmmttee.

HB 329- RETI REMENT | NCENTI VE PROGRAM

Nunmber 0536

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH announced that the l|ast order of business was
HOUSE BILL NO 329, "An Act relating to retirenent incentive
prograns for the public enployees' retirenent system the
judicial retirenment system and the teachers' retirenment system
relating to separation incentives for certain state enployees;
and providing for an effective date.”

[Before the conmttee was the proposed conmttee substitute (CS)

for HB 329, Version 23-LS1109\H, Craver, 1/28/04, adopted as a
work draft on 1/29/04.]

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 20- February 19, 2004



[ The commttee took an at-ease from9:38 a.m to 9:42 a.m]
Number 0623

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH noved to adopt Amendnent 1, a handwitten
anendnent that read as follows [original punctuation provided,
with some formatting changed]:

Pg 8.
Del ete Sec. 8 & renunber accordingly

Arend title to delete "the judicial retirement
system ™

REPRESENTATI VE HOLM obj ected [for discussion purposes].

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH stated that there was previous testinony [at a
prior hearing] that "the judiciary was put in because it was
based on a previous version of the bill." He said, "There was
no testinony before the conmttee that that was necessary. It
seened to adjust one person, and |I'm not sure if the sponsor
objected to deleting that one person. It just dealt wth the
adm nistrative director of the court system™

Number 0690

REPRESENTATIVE LESIL MGURE, Alaska State Legislature, as
sponsor of HB 329, stated that she has no objection.

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH noted that "that" would also require that the
title be changed to delete the judicial retirenent system
because that would no longer be affected by the Retirenent
Incentive Plan (RIP) bill.

M5. McGU RE answered correct.

Nunber 0695

REPRESENTATI VE HOLM renoved hi s objection.

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH asked if there was any further objection to
Amendnent 1. There being none, Anendnent 1 was adopted. In
response to a question from Representative Seaton, he clarified
t he adopted Amendnent 1.

Number 0740

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -21- February 19, 2004



CHAIR WEYHRAUCH noved to adopt Amendnent 2, a handwitten
anendnent that read as follows [original punctuation provided,
with some formatting changed]:

Pg 2 line 16
after system "and"

line 18
after section, "and"

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH noted that during the last hearing on HB 329
there was testinony that [paragraphs (1), (2), and (3), in
subsection (b), page 2] were to be cunulative as opposed to
alternative requirenents. Anmendnent 2 would nake that change.

Number 0770

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ stated that he wants to make certain
that [Anmendnent 2] conports with the |egislative style manual.

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH replied, "To the extent that it needs to be
tinkered with by legislative drafting, they have ny perm ssion."

Number 0800

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH asked if there was further objection to
Amendnent 2. Hearing no objection, he announced that Amendnent
2 was adopt ed.

Number 0850
CHAIR WEYHRAUCH noved to adopt Amendnent 3, a handwitten
anendnent that read as follows [original punctuation provided,
with some formatting changed]:
Add New Sec. 13 & renunber accordingly.
13. Inplenentation of this RIP shall not inpair any
existing beneficiary of PERS or TERS [sic], nor
di m nish any benefit any current beneficiary of PERS
and TERS [sic] expects to receive as a beneficiary.

Number 0859

REPRESENTATI VE HOLM obj ect ed.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -22- February 19, 2004



CHAI R WEYHRAUCH noted that Amendnent 3 addresses the concern
that those who are presently in the system wouldn't have their
benefits dimnished if a RIP bill is adopted.

Number 0929

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG [ noved to adopt] a conceptual anendnment
to Anendnent 3, which read as follows, [original punctuation
provi ded] :

The boards of the public enployees retirenent system
and the teachers retirenent system shall have the
authority to suspend further enrollnment in the
retirement incentive prograns authorized by this act
upon a determnation that further enrollnment would
have a significant negative effect on the actuaria

soundness of the system

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG nentioned he wants to ensure the
integrity of the existing [Public Enployees' Retirenent System
(PERS)] and [Teachers' Retirenent System (TRS)], and also the
university [retirenent system.

CHAI R WVEYHRAUCH obj ected for di scussion purposes.
Number 0958

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said he would like to add a couple of
words to the conceptual anmendnent to Amrendnent 3 as fol |l ows:

After the words "public enployees retirenment systent
Insert ", university retirenment system"”

Nunber 1062

REPRESENTATIVE MGJ RE stated that she is not aware of a
separate retirenent systemfor the university.

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH opined that the wuniversity is covered under
"this program the board of regents adopted, beginning on Section
4, on page 5."

REPRESENTATI VE McGUI RE offered her understanding that "they're
covered under TRS or PERS."

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH concurr ed.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -23- February 19, 2004



Nunber 1073

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON related his belief that the university
does have a separate retirenment system that it has adopted,
which is an "opt pay" that is "paid in and paid out when they

| eave. " He conpared it to a 401(K) retirenent system The
enpl oyees have one nonth after enploynent to opt in to the PERS
system or to the university retirement system He clarified

that it's a defined contribution program rather than a defined
benefit program

Number 1109
REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ stated, "It seens to nme if you' re going
do this, then you need to mke a ... <conformng title
amendnent . "

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG sai d, "Absolutely. He suggested that
could be "a second anendnent to the anendnent."”

Nunber 1142

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH asked if there was any objection to
[ Representative G uenberg's anendnent to t he concept ua
anendnent to Anmendnment 3, adding the university retirenent
systen]. There being no objection, it was so ordered.

Nunmber 1168

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH asked if there was any objection to the
conform ng concept ual title anmendnent [ suggest ed by
Representative Berkowi tz]. There being none, it was so ordered.

Nunber 1185

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON commented that the conmittee is running
fast. He said, "A defined contribution program does not have
any of the actuarial significance that a defined benefit program
has, and so, including this in here is going to be confusing,
because they don't apply.” He requested that that be renoved.

Number 1213
REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG [nobved] to rescind the action to

include the wuniversity retirement system There being no
objection, it was so ordered.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 24- February 19, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE BERKOWN TZ indicated that the conformng title
anendnent be stricken, because [it's no | onger necessary].

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG [nobved] to rescind the committee's
action [in adopting the conformng title].

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH said, "So rescinded."”
Nunber 1232

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG [renewed his notion] to adopt his
conceptual anendnment [to Amendnent 3, text provided previously].

Number 1249
CHAIR WEYHRAUCH asked, "If | renoved ny objection to the
anendnent to the anendnent, is there further objection?” [ No

objection was stated, and the conceptual anmendnent to Amendnent
3 was treated as adopted. ]

Nunber 1270

REPRESENTATI VE HOLM renoved his objection to Anendnent 3 [as
anended] .

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH asked if there was any further objection to
Amendnment 3, as anended. There being none, Anendnent 3 [as
anended] was adopt ed.

Number 1300
CHAIR WEYHRAUCH noved to adopt Amendnent 4, a handwitten
anmendnent that read as follows [original punctuation provided,
with some formatting changed]:
Page 2, line 4
After "appropriate”
add "and subject to the requirenments of section 13,"
Nunmber 1315
REPRESENTATI VE HOLM obj ect ed.
CHAI R VEYHRAUCH expl ai ned that Amendnent 4 refers to the adopted

Amendnent 3. He said it "brings it back into the begi nning of
the bill."

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -25- February 19, 2004



REPRESENTATIVE HOLM offered his recollection that the word
"shoul d* was used at one tine.

Number 1399

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG proffered that that was "sonething that
Fate Putman suggested,” but it was not actually anended. He
said he would be prepared to address that after finishing with
Amendnent 4.

Number 1421

REPRESENTATI VE HOLM renoved his objection to Anendnent 4.

Nunmber 1430

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH asked if there was any further objection to
Amendnent 4. There being none, Anendnent 4 was adopt ed.

Nunber 1500

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG turned to the amendnent to which
Representative Holm had previously referred. As suggested by
M. Putman during a previous hearing of the bill, Representative

G uenberg offered Amendnent 5 as foll ows:

On page 2, line 5
After "enpl oyer™
Del ete "need not"
I nsert "shoul d"

On page 2, line 6

Bet ween "woul d* and "be"

Del ete "ot herw se"
Number 1545

CHAI R WVEYHRAUCH obj ect ed.

Nunber 1553

REPRESENTATI VE HOLM asked if there would be a fiscal inpact. He
stated, "I'm concerned that we take an enployer - in this case
the school districts and whatever - and we say they should

extend the incentive plan wthout knowi ng what the inpact of
that's going to be."

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 26- February 19, 2004



Nunmber 1560

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ opi ned that the decision that the House
State Affairs Standing Commttee has to nmake is whether it
believes that Representative Guenberg's proposal is better
policy; the House Finance Commttee will determ ne whether [the
state] can afford that better policy.

Nunmber 1580

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said he thinks [Amendnent 5] would
significantly change the character of the bill. He i ndicated
that it would be a change from gaining efficiencies for the
system by allowing some rehires, for exanple, to alnost a
| egi slative mandate to [extend the incentive plan] to al

enpl oyees, by using the word "shoul d". He said he thinks it
would created | egal chal l enges because of the uncertain
interpretation of the word "shoul d". He stated his opposition

to Anrendnent 5.
Nunmber 1666

REPRESENTATI VE McGQUI RE said she al so opposes [Amendnent 5] for
many of the reasons that Representative Seaton just stated. She
enphasi zed that one of the inportant aspects of crafting [the
bill] was in ensuring that the RIP would be conpletely voluntary
and could be used as a managerial tool to help save nobney where

appropri ate. She reminded the <conmittee that "any plan
ultimately has to go through the Departnment of Adm nistration.”
If the plan doesn't neet savings criteria, it wll never go
t hrough, she warned. She said, "In point of fact, 1've

mai ntained from the beginning [that] this ought to be a zero
fiscal note, especially with your anmendnents now. "

Nunber 1720

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOWN TZ stated that "it's just al |
instructive |anguage, so we're arguing about nothing." He
encouraged the comrittee to bring the bill to a vote.

Number 1773

A roll <call vote was taken. Representatives Berkowitz and
G uenberg voted in favor of Amendnent 5. Representatives Lynn
Hol m Seat on, Coghi I I, and Weyhrauch voted agai nst it.

Therefore, Amendnent 5 failed by a vote of 2-5.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -27- February 19, 2004



Number 1800

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG noved to report [CSHB 329, as anended,
out of commttee wth individual recomendations and the
acconpanying fiscal notes]. There being no objection, CSHB
329(STA) was reported out of the House State Affairs Standing
Commi ttee.

ADJ OQURNVENT
Number 1820
There being no further business before the commttee, the House

State Affairs Standing Committee neeting was adjourned at 10:00
a.m

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 28- February 19, 2004



